

Parks and Recreation Department Tuesday, May 27, 2008

Meeting

A regularly scheduled meeting of the Parks and Recreation Department Parks Board was held on Tuesday, May 27, 2008 at the Boards and Commissions Conference Room, 301 West 2nd St. Room 1101.

Board Members Present: Interim Board Chair, Linda Guerrero, Interim Vice-Chair Danette Chimenti, Jeb Boyt, Marilyn Bostick, Hector Ortiz and Jeff Francell.

Board Members Absent: Mark Vane, Stephen Shang

Staff Members Present: Stuart Strong, Cora Wright, Ricardo Soliz, Farhad Madani, Tony Arnold and Tino Garcia.

A. Meeting called to order

Board Chair Guerrero called the meeting to order at 6:18 p.m.

B. Approval of Minutes

Board Member Francell moved to approve both the March 25, 2008 and April 22, 2008 minutes, seconded by Board Member Bostick. Motion carried 5-0.

C. Citizen Communication

Ora Houston, Chair of the Huston-Tillotson University alumni association, addressed the Board regarding Downs Field, currently a home field for the Huston-Tillotson University baseball team. She expressed concern with the bathroom and locker facilities that are deplorable and are not in code compliance. Although this is her main concern, there are other issues that need to be addressed; such as whether the exclusive rights to play there along belong to the university and with the baseball teams from the Austin Metro league. The Rosewood Neighborhood Contact Team has acknowledged that they want to extend the park usage to include the surrounding neighborhood. Ms. Houston requested that a face-to-face meeting be held with members from Huston-Tillotson University, the Parks and Recreation Department, members of the Rosewood Neighborhood Contact Team and the Austin Metro League. She wants to reach consensus on a common understanding of the issues and develop agreed upon outcomes. Board Member Bostick suggested that the

bathroom to be closed immediately. Board Chair Guerrero announced that the issue would be sent to the Land and Facilities sub-committee for further discussion. That meeting would be held on June 10, 2008

Stan Kerr, a member of the Downs family, appeared before the Board and also addressed the deplorable maintenance of Down's field. He requested that renovation and upkeep of the field be started.

Charlie McCabe, Executive Director, Austin Parks Foundation, briefed the Board on the Auction Oaks project at Republic Square.

- D. Briefs None
- E. New Business and Action Items
- 1. Make a recommendation to the City Council regarding the adoptions of the Barton Springs Pool Master Plan.

Al Godfrey, Godfrey, Limbacher and Associates, provided a review of the proposed Barton Springs Pool Master Plan. Since the beginning of the Plan, four public forums have been held which have produced a list of short terms goals. These goals were presented to the City Council in Sep. 2007. He indicated that the plan should be completed by June 2008. In his brief, Mr. Godfrey reported that the Plan's goal statement (which was also produced as a result from input from stakeholder meetings) has been compared to the City Council resolution and appears to be on track. His brief also included the following items; 1) a review of the site plan of the area; 2) the project approach; 3) a review of the short term goals; 4) a discussion of the pool and it's infrastructure; 5) examples of the principle springs, especially a new concept for Eliza Springs and Sunken Gardens; 6) the downstream park; 7) the North and South grounds; and finally 8) the Bathhouse.

Board Member Boyt reported that a memo had been provided to the Board by the Barton Springs Scientific Advisory Committee. In it, concerns were raised regarding: 1) the lack of input from hydrologists, biologists and ecologists; 2) the plan does not strike a balance between historic habitant from its historic infrastructure; and 3) the lack of ecological and hydrological studies that would help make informed decisions for both the habitant and the recreational facility.

David Johns, Watershed Protection Department, was asked to provide comments. He indicated that the scientific advisory committee was made up of independent and voluntary scientific members. He also said that they were looking at ways in which the pool could be more functional and natural, benefiting both the swimmers as well as the salamanders.

Tony Arnold, Project Manager, reported that staff is currently responding to comments from the stakeholder forums and that they were ready to present the plan to various board

and commissions. They include the following: 1) Parks Board; 2) Environmental Board; 3) Planning Commission; 4) Design Commission and 5) the Historic Landmark Commission. Board Chair Guerrero reminded that Board that the plan is a draft and is subject to change. She also indicated that the joint subcommittee, comprised of the Parks Board and Environmental Board, is considering changing the name from a master plan to an improvement plan. Mr. Arnold responded that the reason it is being called a master plan is because that was the direction given to them by the City Council.

Bill Bunch, Save Our Springs Alliance, asked the Board to not consider the proposal at this time. He expressed concern with the revolving architectural firms that are rotated to provide architectural services to small and medium size projects and that the Barton Springs Pool Master Plan does not fit into this category. He is also concerned that the community was not embraced in order to get all the best ideas and that the south bathhouse was decided without community input. In closing, he suggested that all of the things that everyone had agreed on should continue, but to reconsider all others not agreed on.

Board Chair Guerrero reminded everyone that the presentation could continue to be presented to the other scheduled board and commissions.

- 2. Make a recommendation to the City Council regarding temporary work or parkland. This is a Austin Water Utility project to use parkland located at 10904 Pickfair Drive, known as Pickfair to conduct a wastewater improvement. Upon the decommissioning of the lift station, improvement to the park will be to fill and re-grade an existing overflow pond to establish an additional 0.25 acre usable area for the park. Improvements will also include removing existing wood and chain link fencing around lift station area and installing new 6 foot tall metal fencing similar in style to existing metal fencing in the park. The project is estimated to start in the fall/winter 2008 with a completion date of 90-120 days. Board Member Boyt moved approval of the project, seconded by Board Member Chimenti. Motion carried 5-0.
- 3. Make a recommendation to the City Council regarding permanent and temporary use of parkland along Blunn Creek Preserve.

Item pulled by Board Chair Guerrero.

4. Make a recommendation to the City Council regarding temporary use of parkland. The Austin Water Utility is requesting use of parkland located at Duncan Park along Shoal Creek north of 9th street as part of the work site to construct two manholes on an existing wastewater line. The staging and temporary access area will require 4, 000 sq. ft for the four week project. A temporary trail closure will be in effect throughout the duration of the project. The project start date is June 2, 2008 and the expected duration period is 20 days. Board Member Francell moved to approved the project, seconded by Board Member Ortiz. Motion carried 5-0.

5. Make a recommendation to the City Council regarding permanent and temporary of parkland at Waterloo Park and near the mouth of Waller Creek at Lady Bird Lake.

Board Member Francell indicated a reluctance to vote on this project in light of the fact that it was not discussed at the Land and Facilities subcommittee (due to a lack of quorum). As a result, he requested that it be pulled. Land and Facilities Chair Boyt concurred but requested that staff determine and report the loss of event dollars that will be lost due to the closure of the park.

F. Director's Report

Acting Director Strong briefed the Board on the following:

- ? The FY08-09 budget forecast for the upcoming year. Also, with the anticipated shortfall in tax revenues, the department has been asked to save 1.4 million dollars in this fiscal year. To accomplish this, the department will not fill any current vacancies, purchases will be looked at more carefully, and the costs of park improvements will be done by using trust and agency monies instead of the general fund.
- ? The department has a received an award as part of the livable city initiative. An esthetic category was awarded to the department for Butler Park.
- ? A video was shown highlighting the grand opening of the Gus Garcia Recreation Center. The success was due in large part to the after school attendance by kids from Dobie Middle School.
- ? The damage caused by the May 15th storm. Mr. Strong was very pleased with the work of staff to clear the logs and limbs from the streets and parks.

Note: Board Chair Guerrero requested that Item #5 (regarding the temporary and permanent use of Waterloo Park) be revisited. In order to move part of the project along, Board Member Francell moved to approve the outflow only, seconded by Board Member Boyt. Motion passed 5-0.

G. Future Agenda Items for Board Members

Board Chair Guerrero requested an explanation of the rotation list for professional architectural services. Acting Director Strong explained as requested. Tony Arnold, Project Manager, explained the Chair's question regarding the master plan scope statement.

Board Member Boyt expressed concern over the lack of a quorum for the land and facilities subcommittee. Also, reported on the lack of fair and open discussion regarding public access to the BCP. He is growing increasingly pessimistic about the public access process.

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:25 p.m.